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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members,
Raj Rajendra Industries Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accorupanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Raj Rajendra
Industries Limited. (“the Company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as on 31t March, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in

— Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the ‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') specified
under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March
2024, and its Profit and its changes in equity, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
— accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI")
together with the ethicai requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thcreon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, ,
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon, which we obtained
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the Board’s Report along with its Annexure, which is
expected to be made available to us after that date.

QOur upinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing se, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the
other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s Report, we conclude that there

is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
ncthing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the act’) with respect to the preparation of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 (as
amended}.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgement and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial control, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements Ind AS that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative hut to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, mtentlonal.*uh}lssmns
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. o ‘:ﬁ o
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e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contraols.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality & qualitative factors in

» Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

e To evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the ‘Order’) tssued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report
that;

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

3




b)

g)
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in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statement comply with the applicable
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

We have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCOFR) of the
Company as on 315t March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended ason that date and our report as per
“Annexure B” expressed an unmodified opinion.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with the Rule 11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2015 (as
amended):

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on its
financial position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as
such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does
not arise.

iii. During the year 2023-2024 the Company was not required to transfer any amount to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

iv. {a) The management has represented that, to the best of it'’s knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by
the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Finding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a} and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

(d) The company has not declared or not paid any dividend during the year in
contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(e) Based con our examination, which includes test checks, the company has used
accounting software’s for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transaction recorded in the
software’s. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1] of the Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirement for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

h) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits
laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For P. Subramaniam& Associates

UDINNo.: 2404316 3B KERYPBR 24
Place: Mumbai

Dated: 25.05.2024
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“ANNEXURE A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF
RA] RAJENDRA INDUSTRIES LIMITEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T
MARCH 2024

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
standalone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

L. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, all the assets have been physically verified by the management during
the year. No material discrepancies in the assets have been noticed on such verification.

{c) The title deed of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 5.1on fixed assets to the
financial statement, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment during the year.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us no
Proceedings have been initiated or there are no case pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions act 1988,

(a] The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In Qur
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. [n our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the procedure of physical verification of
inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size
of the company and the nature of its business. On the basis of our examination of the records
of inventory, we are of the opinion that the company is generally maintaining proper records
of inventory. We have not found any discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate, for each
clause of inventory. Any discrepancies found were not material and the same have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

(b) Inourapinion and according to the information and explanations given to us

The company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets; the quarterly returns or
statement filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts
of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company
has not granted any loans or advance in nature of loan during the year to any other entity.

(a) The Company has not made any investment during the year in any other entity. The
details of old investment in the company is as under

Sr, Particulars | Investment
No. | ' . _ o _ | (in Lacs) _
Aggregate amount of investment made during the year: |
| Related party ‘ - | Nil

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above
| Cases. = _ S
Related party
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(b] In our opinion all the Investment made are not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us there are no loans and
advances in nature of loans outstanding hence the question of repayment of principal and
interest does not arise.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and in view of no loans and
advances outstanding the question of over dues payment does not arise.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us the Joan which was due in the
current year has been received along with interest. No extension has been given to the said
loan.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us the company has not granted
any loans or advance in nature of loan either repayable on demand or without specifying any
term or period of repayment.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion all the
provision of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
deposits from the public. Hence the question of complying with the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under are not applicable to the Company.

Vi According to the information and explanations given to us, The maintenance of cost records
as specified by the Central Government has under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act has been duly maintained by the company.

vil. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of applicable statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and any other Statutory dues were in arrears for a period
exceeding six months as at the end of the financial year from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the informaticn and explanations given to us, where statutory dues referred
to in sub-clause (a) there are no other statutory dues that have not been deposited with
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

viil. According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has no such
transaction which are not recorded in the bocks of account and have surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

IX. According to the information and explanations give to us,

{a) The Company have not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the
payment of interest there on to any lender.

{b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.
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{c) The Term loan taken by the company has been applied for the purpose for which it was
taken.

(d)} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by
the Company.

{e) We report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person during
the year on account of or to meet the obligation of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

{F) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, associate or joint ventures and hence, reporting of the Order is not
applicable for the year under report.

(x) (a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments} during the year.

{b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, as
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to
the Company.

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

{(b) During the year, no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

{xii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company is not a Nidhi company. Hence the provision is not applicable to the Company.

{xiii} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv} According to the information and explanations given to us and, the company is not
required to have internal Audit system and hence company does not have any internal
audit system.

{(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Hence the provision of section 192 of the
Companies Act is not applicable to the company.
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{xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us,

[a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India, 1934.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{d) The Company is not part of any group {as per the provisions of the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the
requirements are not applicable.

{xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examinaticn of the records of the Company, the company has not incurred any cash
loses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xvill) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no resignation of
the statutory auditers during the financial year.

(xix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of financials assets and payment of financials
liabilities, other information’s accompanying the financials statement, In our opinion
and according to the information and explanation given to us the board of directors and
management plans,there is no material uncertainty exist as on the date of audit report
that the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance sheet
as and when they fall due within period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility ("CSR") and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a
transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act, or special account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6] of section 135 of the said Act.

(xxi) There is no qualification or adverse remark is in the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order (CARQ) reports of the company.

For P. Subramaniam& Associates

Proprietor
Mem. No. 043163
UDINNo.: 24648163 BRFAY P83 74

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 25.05.2024
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“ANNEXURE B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF
RA] RAJENDRA INDUSTRIES LIMITEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Raj Rajendra Industries
Limited (“the Company”] as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s pelicies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial informaticn, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financtal reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”] and the
Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia. These Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to you, the
Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial contrels over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of [ndia,

For P. Subramaniam& Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai Mem. No. 043163
Dated: 25.05.2024 UDIN No.: 24 643 1¢ 3 B KFAYLEIFE



Raj Rajendra Industries Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
A [Non-current assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 1,205.93 1,292.21
b) Capital Work in Progress 5 803.39 777.26
c) Right of Use Asset 6 - 26.30
d) Investment Property 7 1,627.78 1,546.34
e) Financial Assets
i) Investments 8 230.72 230.72
i) Loans and Advances 9 21.97 21.85
3,889.79 3,894.68
B Current Assets
a) Inventories 10 9563.25 1,029.53
b) Financial Assets
i) Trade Receivables 11 960.83 1,532.63
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 2.87 1.30
{iii) Loans and Advances 13 33.00 12.57
c) Other Current Assets 14 185.67 166.58
2,135.62 2,742.61
TOTAL 6,025.41 6,637.29
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A |Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 15 850.00 850.00
b) Other Equity 16 3,305.81 2,845.44
4,155.81 3,695.44
Liabilities
B [Non-current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 17 686.79 869.70
b) Provisions 18 20.90 19.46
c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 19 96.05 103.91
803.74 993.07
C [Current liabiiities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Short Term Borrowings 20 770.71 1,117.18
ii) Trade Payables 21
- Amount due to Micro and small enterprises - -
- Amount due to other than Micro and small 193.13 800.30
enterprises
b) Other Current Liabilities 22 62.61 13.43
¢) Provisions 23 38.41 17.87
1,065.86 1,948.78
TOTAL 6,025.41 6,637.29
See accompaning notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our audit report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For P. Subramaniam & Associates Raj Rajendra Industries Limited
Asgountants X £
2 R e7W ) £ \rf""/
. ‘NW‘—“ MUM R A
{ S / QKHML—fF’
51"@ AP e a path R. Jain Kiran R. Jain
Propriéthis Haging Director Director
Mem No: 043163 (DIN : 00684357) {DIN : 00684349)
UDIN: 246431638 FAYPB3T6
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2024 Date: May 25, 2024




Raj Rajendra Industries Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A [Income
Revenue from Operations 24 952128 11,299.84
Other Income 25 72.26 76.56
Total income (A) 9,593.54 11,376.40
B |Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 26 7.384.91 9,048.75
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work in Progress 27 (58.94) 2558
Manufacturing Expenses 28 552.41 526.37
Employee Benefit Expenses 29 625.55 564.85
Finance Costs 30 105.78 134.64
Depreciation and Amortisation 488 112.49 131.33
Other Expenses 31 258.12 338.21
Total Expenses {B) 8,980.32 10,770.73
C |Profit Before Tax (A - B) (C) 613.22 605.67
Exceptional items = &
Profit / (Loss) before Extraordinary ltems and tax 613.22 605.67
D [Tax expense: 19
- income Tax - Current Year 157.00 167.04
- Income tax - Earlier Years 6.27 -
- Deferred Tax Charge/ (Credit) {7.86) (1.39
Total Tax Expense (D) 155.41 165.65
E |Profit After Tax (C - D) (E) 457,81 440.02
F |Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
a) (i) ltems not to be reclassified subsequently to Statement of
Profit and Loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans - gain/(loss) 2.56 246
- Income Tax relating to items that will be classified to Profit or - -
Loss
b} (i) ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to statement of - -
Profit and Loss
{iiy Income tax relating to items that will be classified to Profit or - -
Loss
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (F) 2.56 2.46
G (Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (E + F) 460.37 442.48
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 32 539 518
Equity shares {Face value of Rs. 10 each]

See accompaning notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our audit report of even date

For P. Subramaniam & Associates
EQ ] B

Mem o 043163
UDIN: 240U 63 B KFAYPBR 16

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Raj Rajendra Industries Limited

<
D \ndUSf
AN
& )

i

Kiran R, Jain
Director
(DIN : 00684349}

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 25, 2024




Raj Rajendra Industries Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended March 31, 2024

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

A. |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit /{loss) before taxes

Adjustments for:

Finance cost

Interest income

Depreciation and amortization

{Profit) on sale/ discard of fixed assets

Provision for Expected credit Loss

Operating profit / {loss) before working capital changes

Movement in Working Capital
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

{Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables and Other Liabilities
{Decrease) / Increase in Povisions and Employee Benefits

Adjustment for:
Direct taxes paid (including Tax Deducted at Source)

B. |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and EWquipment (Including
capital work in progress and capital advances)

Purchase on Investment Property

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

interest Income

Net Cash (Used in} / from Investing Activities... (B}

C. |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/ (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (net)

Increase/ {Decrease) in Working Capital Loan
Interest Paid (Including Other Borrowing Cost)
Net cash (Used in} / from Financing Activities... (C)

Cash and Cash Eguivalents at end of the Year
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets including Financial Assets

Net Cash Generated/ (Used in) from Operating Activities...(A)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+ B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the Year (Refer note 12)

613.22 605.67
105.78 134.64
(52.88) (75.84)
112.49 131.33
(0.91) 5
(17.68) 47.40
760.02 843.20
(20.55) 1,228.84
76.28 (245.39)
(19.09) 474
589.48 (842.47)
(557.99) 660.59
3.92 3.72
832.07 1,653.23
 (141.65 (159.61
690.42 1,493.62
(26.13) (861.64)
(81.44) (1,546.34)
1.00 5
52.88 75.84
(53.69) (2,332.14)
(182.91) 754.02
(346.47) 219.03
(105.78) (134.64)
(635.16) 838.41
157 {0.11)
1.30 1.41
2.87 1.30
1.57 {0.11)

Notes:

(i) Refer note 37 for other cash flow statement related notes.

(i) Cash flow statement has been prepared under "indirect method” as set out in Ind AS 7 - "Cash Flow Statement”.

See accompaning notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

A < P_Subrai
SHREGHetDr =
Mem No: 043163

UDIN: 24043162 RREAYP B3 F6

Piace: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directiors of

Raj Rajendra

e |

th R. Jain
naging Director
{DIN : 00684357)

Industries Limited

Kiran R. Jain
Director
{DIN : 00684349)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2024




(a)

(b)

Raj Rajendra Industries Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended March 31, 2024

Equity Share Capital

{Amount in Lakhs}

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 8560.00 850.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the Year . -
Closing balance 850.00 850.00
{Refer note }
Other Equity
Particulars Reserves & Other Total Other Equity
Surplus Comprehensive
Income
Retained Earnings | Remeasurement

gain/ (loss) of
defined benefit plan

Balance as at April 1, 2022 2,396.62 6.34 2,402.96
Profit for the Year 440.02 - 440.02
Other Comprehensive income/ {oss) for the Year (net) - 2.46 2.46
'Eaﬁ—nce as at March 31, 2023 2,836.64 8.80 2,845.44
Prafit for the Year 457 .81 - 457.81
Other Comprehensive Income/ (foss) for the Year (net) - 2.56 2.56
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3,294.45 11.36 3,305.81

(Refer note )

As per our audil repart of even date

M No: 043163

UD Mt ~24 0431638 KRFAYPB3TE
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 25, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

{DIN : D0684357)

Raj Rajendra Industries Limited

Kiran R. Jain
Director
(DIN : 00684349)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2024



Raj Rajendra Industries Limited
Notes on financial statements for the year ended 31*' March, 2024

1.

[3F]
—

25l

2.3.

Background

The Company was incorporated on 5" May 1994 under Companies Act, 1956 and is domiciled in
India. The registered office of the Company is located at 324, 3rd Floor, Hari Om Plaza, M. G.
Road, Opp. National Park, Borivali (East} Mumbai—400 066, India. The Company is in the
business of manufacturing and trading in textile products. Currently, it has manufacturing plants in
Umargaon (Gujarat) and Palghar (Maharashtra).

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31™ March, 2024 were approved and
adopted by board of directors of the Company in their meeting held 25* May, 2024.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements (on standalone basis) of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

These financial statements are prepared complying in all material respects with the Ind AS
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.The financial statements comply with Ind
AS notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”).

Functional and presentation of currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees which is also the Company’s functional
currency.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transagction between market participants at the measurement date. A fair value
measurcment assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal market or the most
advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole. The fair value hierarchy is described as below:




Raj Rajendra Industries Limited
Notes on financial statements for the year ended 31* March, 2024

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted price in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of tair value hierarchy.

Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purpose using methods as
prescribed in “Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement”.

24. Use of significant aceounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as on the date of
financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the periods presented. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared.Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the peried in which the estimates are
revised and future periods are affected.

Key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Significant estimates and critical
judgement in applying these accounting policies are described below:

i)  Property, plant & equipment, investment property and Intangible assets

The Company has estimated the useful life, residual value and method of depreciation /
amortisation of property, plant & equipment, investment property and intangible assets based
on its internal technical assessment. Property, plant & equipment, investment property and
intangible assets represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. Further,
the Company has estimated that scrap value of property, plant & equipment and investment
property would be able to cover the residual value & decommissioning costs of property,
plant & equipment and investment property.

Therefore, the estimates and assumptions made to determine useful life, residual wvalue,
method of depreciation/amortization and decommissioning costs are critical to the
Company’s financial position and performance.

i)  Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on industry practice, Company’s past
historyand existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

;\’\':3

)




Raj Rajendra Industries Limited
Notes on financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

3.1.

iii)

Income taxes

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation,
developments in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be
subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results may vary from expectations
resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax
settlements and therefore the tax charge in the statement of profit and loss.

Significant Accounting Policies
Presentation and disclosure of standalone financial statement

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the division II of Schedule III of the Companies Act,
2013 for a company whose financial statements are made in compliance with the Companies
(India Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Based on the nature of service and the time between rendering of services and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, 12 months has been considered by the Company for the purpose of
current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
Recognition and measurement

Properties plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. Cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment includes purchase price including non-refundable taxes and duties,
borrowing cost directly attributable to the qualifying asset, any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its intended use and the present
value of the expected cost for the dismantling/decommissioning of the asset.

Parts (major components) of an item of property, plant and equipmentshaving different useful
livesare accounted as separate items of property, plant and equipments.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit
and loss as incurred.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of cost incurred on property, plant and equipment under
construction / acquisition that are not yet ready for their intended use at the Balance Sheet Date.

Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment (other than freehold land and capital work in
progress) is provided on a straight-line method (SLM) over their useful lives which is in
consonance of useful life mentioned in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Building on leasehold lands and improvements to building on leasehold land / premises are
amortized over the period of lease or useful life whichever is lower.

Leasehold land considered as finance lease is amortized over the period of lease.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively.
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3.3

3.4.

3.5.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-
recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Intangible assets and amortisation
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
attributable to asset will flow to the Company and the cost of asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition/development less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment loss if any.

Cost of an intangible asset includes purchase price including non - refundable taxes and duties,
borrowing cost directly attributable to the qualifying asset and any directly attributable
expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets under development comprises of cost incurred on intangible assets under
development that are not yet ready for their intended use as at the Balance Sheet date.

Amortization and useful lives

Computer softwares are amortized on straight line basis. Amortisation methods and useful lives
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

In case of assets purchased during the year, amortization on such assets is calculated on pro-rata
basis from the date of such addition

Inventories

The inventories (including traded goods) are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value after
providing for cost of obsolescence wherever considered necessary. However, materials and other
items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

The cost comprises of costs of purchase, duties and taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable), conversion cost and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

In case of work in progress and finished goods, the costs of conversion include costs directly
related to the units of production and systematic allocation of fixed and variable production
overheads. The cost of finished goods also includes excise duty wherever applicable.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount can be reliably measured.

a) Sales of goods are recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer that coincides with delivery and is measured at the fair value of
consideration received or receivable taking net off the amouptfFagds and services tax
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3.6.

3.7

3.8.

b) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and rate applicable.

¢) Dividend income on investment is accounted for in the period/year in which the right to
receive the same is established.

d) Service income is recognised upon rendering of services. Service income is recorded net of
service tax/GST.

¢) Rental income (net of taxes) on assets given under operating lease arrangements is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the receipts are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected
inflationary cost increases.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the period to which they relate when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the Company will comply with the attached
conditions. Government grants are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on systematic
basis over a period in which the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on
the date of the transaction. As at the Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are
translated at closing exchange rate. Exchange difference arising on settlement or translation of
foreign currency monetary items are recognised as income or expense in the year in which they
arise.

Foreign currency non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of transactions.

Employee benefits
s Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short term employee benefits and they are recognized as an expense at the
undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee
renders the related service,

» Post-employment benefitsé& other long term benefits
a. Detined contribution plan

The defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company contributes fixed contribution to a Government Administered Fund and will
have no obligation to pay further contribution. The Company’s defined contribution plan
comprises of Provident Fundand Employee State Insurance Scheme. The Company’s
contribution to defined contribution plans are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the pericd in which the employee renders the related service,

Post-employment benefitand other long term benefits

The Company has defined benefit plans comp
defined benefit obligations is determined based; wadluation using the projected
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unit credit method. The rate used to discount defined benefit obligation is determined by
reference to market vields at the Balance Sheet date on Indian Government Bonds for the
estimated term of obligations.

For gratuity plan, re-measurements comprising of (a) actuarial gains and losses and (b) the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Such re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and
Loss in subsequent periods.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of defined benefit plan are recognised
when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

Actuarial gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect of
changes in actuarial assumptions for other employee benefit plan [other than gratuity] are
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expense.

3.9. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs (net of interest income on temporary investments) that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost
of the respective asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying
asset is an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. Ancillary cost of borrowings in respect of loans not disbursed are carried forward and
accounted as borrowing cost in the year of disbursement of loan. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest expenses
calculated as per effective interest method, exchange difference arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent they are treated as an adjustment to the borrowing cost and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

3.10. Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the
use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of
the asset.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Right of use assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable

amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flo ﬁtﬁ[ﬂe‘lgrgely independent of
hose from other assets. 5
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3.11.

3.12.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Taxes on income

Tax expenses for the year comprises of current tax, deferred tax charge or credit and adjustments
of taxes for earlier years. In respect of amounts adjusted outside profit or loss (i.e. in other
comprehensive income or equity), the corresponding tax effect, if any, is also adjusted outside
profit or loss.

Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax
losses and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances
can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be utilized. In situations where the
Company has unused tax losses and unused tax credits, deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that they can be utilized against future taxable profits. Deferred lax assets are
reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying amounts at each Balance Sheet date.

Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to theextent it
is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises
previously unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit allow deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances, deposits with banks (other than
on lien) and all short term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent as calculated above also
includes outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
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3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

Cash flow statement

Cash tlows are reported using the indirect method, where by net profit before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are
segregated.

Provisions, contingent liabilities,contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. If the effect of time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources
is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

The Company does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses its existence in the financial
statements if the inflow of economic benefits is probable. However, when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is
recognised as an asset,

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders’ and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. The weighted
average numbers of shares also includes fixed number of equity shares that are issuable on
conversion of compulsorily convertible preference shares, debentures or any other instrument,
from the date consideration is receivable (generally the date of their issue) of such instruments.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholder’ and weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding
during the year including share options, convertible preference shares and debentures, except
where the result would be anti-dilutive. Potential equity shares that are converted during the vear
are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the beginning of the year or
date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of conversion.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on jmitial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial ass liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit of |§5
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3.16.1. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost
(except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition);

¢ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

¢ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the
“Other income” line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income
pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve
for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
¢ It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

» On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial

guarantee. Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or

loss when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the

economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the=sftity, the dividend does not

represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment a ‘
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measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included in the ‘Other income’
line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably
elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised
when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a
recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model based on
‘simplified approach’ for the financial assets which are not fair valuedthrough profit or loss. Loss
allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an
amount equalto lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at
an amount equal to the twelve month ECL, unlessthere has been a significant increase in credit
risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date to the amount that is required tobe recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial asset

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or less if such gain or loss would have otherwise
been recoguised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A guarsative gain or loss that
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3.10.2.

to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts.

Financial liability and equity instrument
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
de-recognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at
below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set
out below.

Financial liabilities at FYTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent
consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind
AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

» on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* itis aderivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging istrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration
recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103
applies, may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

s such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

+ the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derwatwes and Ind AS 109

permits the entire combined contract to be des:gnated g k. in accordance with
nd AS 109.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line
item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in protit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit
risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability
is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in
retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company
that are designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured
at amortised cost at the eud of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial
liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in
the ‘Finance costs’ line item. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an intcgral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Financial guarantce contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
g reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee coniracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values
and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

» the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of
Ind AS 109; and

o the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate

Comumitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair
values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

¢ the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of
Ind AS 109; and

the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulati
recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

mount of income
.y
3 \nd(]s
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Compound financial instruments

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at fair value of
a similar liability that does not have an equity component. The equity component is recognised
initialty as the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole
and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly atiributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and the equity components, if material, in proportion to their initial
carrying amounts.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument
is measured at antortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition except on
conversion or expiry.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet it there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Reclassification

The Company determines classitication of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial habilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The management determines change
in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the
Company’s operations. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is
the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
losses) or interest.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original finaneial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financiai liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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7 Investment Property

(Amount in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Real Estate” 1,627.78 1,546.34
Total 1,627.78 1,546.34
Investment in underconstruction property.
8 Investments

Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

{a) Investment measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
invesiment in Equity Instruments

Unquoted

Sumati Spintex Private Limited

22,70,000 equity shares (March 31, 2023 22,70,000) of Rs. 10 each
Cosmos Co-Op Bank Limited

5,000 equity shares (March 31, 2023 5,000) of Rs. 20 each

229.72

1.00

229.72

1.00

Total

230.72

230.72

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

!T:rket value of quoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

230.72

230.72

9 Loans and advances

{(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Security deposits
- Others 21.97 21.85 |
Total 21.97 21.85 |
10 Inventories
(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

At lower of Cost or Net Realisable Vaiue

Raw Material 883.50 1,018.72
WIP & Finished goods 69.75 10.81
Total 953.25 1,029.53
10.1 Mode of Valuation - Refer note no. 3.4 of significant accounting policy.
10.2 Refer Note - 20.1 for information on hypothecation of inventories,
11 Trade Receivable
Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Trade Receivable

- Considered good 990.55 1,580.03
- Considered doubtful & =
Sub-total 990.55 1,580.03
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 29.72 47 .40
Total 960.83 1,532.63
11.1 Trade receivables ageing analysis
(Amount in Lakhs

[Farticulars As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good
- Less than 6 months

-6 Months - 1 Year

-1-2 Years

- 2-3 Years

More than 3 Years

946.81
43.74

AR

1,580.03

Total

11.2 There were no receivables due by directors or any of the officers of the Co
11.3 Refer Note - 20.1 for information on hypothecation of trade receivaples

NS N 990.55
o N
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Cash and Cash Equivalent

(Amount in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Balances with bank

- In current accounts 0.03 0.11
- Cash in hand 2.84 1.18
Total 2.87 1.30
13 Loans and Advances (Current)
(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
[Advance to Vendors 15.95 s
Advance to Employees 17.05 12.57
[Total 33.00 12.57
14  Other Current Assets
(Amount in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with Government authorities (GST input credit) 162.40 155.60
Prepaid expenses 9.52 9.80
GST refund receivable 23.75 1.18
Total 185.67 166.58
15 Share Capital
(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised Capital
120,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 120,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. 1,200.00 1,200.00
Totai 1,200.00 1,200.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
85,00,000 {(March 31, 2023 85,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 850.00 850.0C
Total 850.00 850.00
15.1 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares :
The Company has only one class of shares referred te as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10. Each helder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled
to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, there are no
preferential amounts inter se equity shareholders, The distribution will be in propertion to the number of equity shares held by
the shaseholders {after due adjustment in case shares are not fully paid up).
15.2 Reconciliation of the number of shares cutstanding is set out below:
_(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number of Amount Number of Shares| Amount |
Shares
ENumber of shares at the beginning 8,500,000 850.00 8,500,000 850.00
Add: Shares issued during the Year - - - -
Less: Buyback during the Year 2 - . -]
Number of shares at the end 8,500,000 850.00 8,500,000 850 |
15.2 Details of shareholders holding more than 5 % shares and also shares held by promoters
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number of % held Number of % held
Shares Shares
Ganpath R. Jain* 10 0.00% 10 0.00%
Harish R Jain* 10 (.00% 10 0.00%
Kiran R. Jain* 10 0.00% 10 0.00%
Rekha H. Jain* 10 0.00% 10 0.00%
eena K. Jain* 10 0.00% 10 0.00%
= BAANMIA] Jain* 10 0.00% 10 0.00%
# 8,499 840 100.00% 8,499,940 100.00%
| “Person g Shares in the capicity as nominee of RRIL Ltd.
WiNMo, 243183 w

*
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16

16.1

17

17.1
(a)

17.2

18

19

Other Equity

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Surplus/ (deficit) in the Statement of Profit and loss (Refer note 16.1)

As per jast balance sheet 2,836.64 2,396.62
Add: Profit/(loss) for the Year 457,81 440.02
Clesing balance 3,294.45 2,836.64
QOther comprehensive income

As per last balance sheet 8.80 6.34
Add: Movement in OCI (Net) during the Year 2.56 248
Closing balance 11.36 8.80
Total 3,3056.81 2,845.44

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss represent net loss remaining after all intra reserve allocations.

Borrowings {Non - Current)

(Amount in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Non-current Borrowings

Secured

Term loans {Refer note 17.1(a))
- From banks (Refer Note 17.1(a) and 17.2)
- From others

Less: Current maturities of long term loans
Total

878.79 1,052.28
878.79 1.052.28
192.00 182.58
686.79 869.70

Details of security provided and terms of repayment

Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank is secured against Office Premises located in Mumbai.

Term foan from bank is repayable in equated monthly instaliments and last instaliment payable in September 2028.
Provision [Non-Current)

{Amount in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for aratuity (Refer note 36(ii)(a) 20.90 19.46
Total 20.90 19.46
Deferred tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
19.1 Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities

{Amount in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Assets

Fiscal disallowances 13.03 5.21
Sub-total (A) 13.03 5.21
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference in net carrying value of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets 109.08 109.12
and investment properies as per income tax and bocks
Sub-total (B) 109.08 109.12
Deferred tax assets/(liability) (A-B) _(96.05) (103.91
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19.2 Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit muiltiplied by applicable tax rate for March 31, 2024 and

March 31, 2023:
(Amount in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit before tax (a) 613.22 605.67
Income tax rale as appiicable (b) 2517% 2517%
Income tax liability/(asset) as per applicable tax rate (a X b) 154.00 152.44

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ not taxable in calculating
taxable income

{i) Expenses disallowed for tax purposes 2.18 1.08
(i) Current Tax expenses of earlier Years 6.27 ~

(iii) Deferred Tax expenses of earlier Years (7.48) 11.93
(iii) Other disallowances 0.44 0.19
Tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Other 155.41 165.65

comprehensive income

155.41 165.65

Note:

(a) The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities in and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiiities refate to income taxes levied by the same
authority.

19.3 Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
{Amount in Lakhs

[Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

—

Current Tax

In respect of the current Year 157.00 167.04

In respect of the earlier Years 6.27 -
163.27 167.04

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Charge/ (Credit) (7.86) (1.39)

(7.86 {1.39}
Total Tax Expense recognized in Current Year 1565.41 165.65

20 Borrowings {Current)
{Amount in Lakhs)

|Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Short Term Borrowings
Working Capital Loan

From bank

- Cash Credit Facility (Refer Note 20.1) 578.71 934.60
Current maturities of Long Term Borrowings 182.00 182.58
Total 770.71 1,117.18

20.1 Working capital loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd is secured by Hypothecation of present and future stocks of Raw
Material, Stock in Process, finished goods and Book debts of the Company and collaterally secured by immovable property
situated at Umbergaon of the Company and personal guarantees of two directors.

21 Trade Payables
(Amount in Lakhs

Particutars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 21.1) - -
Qutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 183.13 800.30

Total 19313 800.30

21.1 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Epleses

i

Development Act (MSMED
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21.2 Trade Payable Ageing Analysis

22

23

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Micro, small and medium enterprises
Less than 1 Year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3 Years

Total

Others

Less than 1 Year
1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3 Years

800.30

Total

800.30

Cther Current Liabilities

{Amount jn Lakzlsj_|

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Advance from customer
Statutory dues
Employees’ Related dues

0.80
14.08
47.72

0.45
12.98

Total

62.61

13.43

Provisions (Current)

(Amount in Lakhs}

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 36((ii)(a)) 1.16 1.24
Provision for Income Tax {net} 38.25 16.63
Total 39.41 17.87
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Revenue from Operations

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Income from sale of goods and services

- Sale of goods 89,505.08 11,297.31
- Job work income 16.20 2.53
Other operating revenue i g
Total 9,521.28 11,299.84
24.1 Disclosure pursuant to ind AS 115: Revenue from contract with customers
{Amount in Lakhs)
a | Disaggregated revenue Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue by geographical market
Within India 9,521.28 11,299.84
Qutside India - -
| Totat 9,521.28 11,299.84
b  Contract Balances
{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ITade receivable (Refer note 11) 960.83 1,532.63
Contract liabilities (Refer note 22) 0.80 0.45
Net Contract Balances 961.63 1,533.08
¢ Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per conlract price 9,521.28 11,299.84
Less: Adjustment
- Government grants - export incentives
Add: Adjustments
Net revenue from contract with customers 9,521.28 11,299.84
25 Other lncome
Amount in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income on
- Interest from customers 52.88 28.83
- Interest on advances - 47.01
Dividend from long term investment - 0.04
Rental income - 0.45
Sundry balances written back = 0.23
Profit On Sale/ Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.91 L
Foreign Fluctuation 0.79 -
Reversal of Provision for expected credit Loss 17.68 =
Total 72.26 76.56
26  Cost of Raw Materlal Consumed
{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Stock
Raw Material {Yarn) 711.80 621.83
Raw Material (Grey) 306.82 125,93
Total Opening Stock (A) 1,018.72 747,76
Add : Purchases
Yarn 5,568.14 5,722.31
Fabrics 1,881.65 3,597.40
Total Purchase (B} 7.249.69 9,319.71
Less: Closing stock
Raw Material (Yarn) 683.42 711.80
Raw Malerial (Grey) 200.08 306.82 |
Total of Closing stock (C) 883.50 1,018.72
Cost of Raw Material Consumed 7,384.91 9,048.75
B ANIAW £ e
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27 Changes in inventories of Work in Progress and Finished Goods
_{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended | Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
=1
Opening Stock of W.LLP & Finished Goods 10.81 36.39
Closing Stock of W.).P. & Finished Goods 69.75 10.81
Total {58.94) 25.58
28 Manufacturing expenses
{Amount in Lakhs
X Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Power and fuel 149.93 138.83
Job charges 261.92 218.71
Consumption of stores and spares 88.24 120.78
Transportation charges 21.14 16.30
Repairs expenses for

- Buildings - -

- Ptant and machinery 8.09 5.86
{nsurance L 23.09 25.89
Total I 552.41 526,37

29 Employee Benefit Expenses
{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 500.24 456.87
Directors remuneration 106.90 88.75
Conlribution to provident and other funds 4.44 5.15
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 36(ii)l.) 3.93 3.82
Staff wellare expenses 10.04 10.26
tl’otal 625.55 564.85
30 Finance Costs
{Amount in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

interest expense at effeclive interest rate on borrowings which are measured at 105.78 134.64
amortized cost
Total 105.78 134.64
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Other Expenses

{(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Operating expanses
Licenses, rates and taxes 6.87 13.46
Repairs expenses for

- Others 1.31 1.85
Adveriisement, publicity and sales promotion 0.07 -
Selling and distribution expenses 18.14 38.44
Brokerage expenses 161.50 168.54
Communication expenses 3.36 4,36
Office Rent 7.93 -
Printing and stationery 2.27 1.29
Professional and consultancy charges 23.83 32.48
Traveiling and conveyance 1743 10.77
Misc expenses 3.92 5.36
Stamp Duty 0.04 7.71
Auditors' remuneralion (Refer Note 31.1) 2.26 2.28
RTA Connectivity Charges 0.23 0.23
Sundry Balance Wioff 0.15 -
Conation 2.49 4.30
CSR Expendilure {Refer Note 38) 6.19 "
Bank charges 0.13 0.66
Provision for Expected credit Loss - 47.40
Total 258.12 339.21

Auditors’ Remuneration

{Amount in Lakhs)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Statutory audit fees 1.11 1.11
Tax audit fees 0.40 0.40
Other services 0.75 0.75
Total 2.26 2.26
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{a)

33.2

34

34.1
(a)

(b}

(c)

{d)

34.2

Earnings per share

Particulars Year ended | Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023

Basic and diluted sarning per share

Profit attributable te the equity helders of the Company (Rs. In Lakhs) 457.81 440.02
Weighted average number of equity shares 3,500,000 8,500,000
Face value per equity share (Rs.) 10 10
Basic and diluted earnings per share in Rs. 5.39 5.18

Capital commitments, other commitments and contingent liabilities

Capital Commitments.

Estimated amount of capital commilments to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for Rs, 494.90/- Lakhs as at March
31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 477.50/- Lakhs).

Contingent liability (to the extent not provided for)

(Amount in Lakhs})

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
(i} Claims against the Company! disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debts
TDS Payabie 13.84 -

In respect of above, the Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of abave.

Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Name and relationships of related parties:
Entities having significant influence over the
Company

RRIL Limited

Entities in which Director/ KMP and relatives have  Rishabraj Estate Developers Private Limited
significant influence Sumati Spintex Private Limited
{Only where there are transaclions/ balances)

Key Management Personnel [KMP): Mr. Ganpath Jain, (Managing Director)
Mr. Kiran R. Jain, (Director)
Mr. Hiren Chheda, (Director)
Mr. Jinang Shah, (Directer)
Mr. Krish H Jain, {Director)

Relatives of KMP Mrs. Leena K Jain, (Wife of Mr. Kiran Jain)

(Only where there are transactions)

Transactions with related parties
{Amount in Lakhs)

Name of the party Nature of transaction Year ended | Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Kiran R, Jain Remuneration 82.50 72.00
Hiren Chedda Remuneration 12.40 11.40
Krish H Jain Remuneration 12.00 12.00
Kiran R. Jain Interest on Loan 1.04 -
Leena K. Jain Salary paid 24,00 18.00
RRIL Limited Rent Income - 0.45
Rishabraj Estate Developers P Ltd |Loan Given:
Opening - 862.61
Paid during the Year - -
Interest {(Net of TDS) - 4231
Repaid During the Year - 904.92
Closing Balance - -
Kiran R. jain Lean Taken 50.00 -
Loan Repaid 50.00 -
QOutstanding balances:
Sumalti Spintex Pvt. Ltd Investment in shares 229.72 229.72

Notes:
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34.3 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

315

(a)

36
(i)

(]
L

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Qutstanding
balances at the Year-end are unsecured and settiement accurs in cash. For the Year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has not
recorded any impairment of receivables relating o amounts owed by refated parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial
Year through examining the financial position of the related party and the marke! in which the related party operates.

Breakup of compensation to key managerial personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the enlity, directly or indireclly, including any director {whether executive or olherwise) of that entity.

Compensation to KMP as specified in note 34.1 (c) above:

(Amount in Lakhs
Year ended | Year ended

Particulars
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Short term employee benefits 106.90 95.40
Other long term benefits* i Z
Total 106.90 95.40

*As the liabilities for defined benefit plans are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaining to Key
Management Personnel are not included.

Disclosure relating to employes benefits as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits'
Disclosures for defined contribution plan

The Company has certain defined contribution plans. The obligation of the Company is limiled to the amount contributed and it has
ne further contractual obligation. Following is the details regarding Company's contributions made during the Year:

(Amount in Lakhs)

‘ Yearended | Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Provident and other funds 444 515
Employees' state insurance (ESIC) 0.23 0.71
Total 4.67 5.86

Disclosures for defined benefit plans

Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity {(Unfunded)

The Company has a defined benefit grawity plan for its employees. The gratuity plan i1s governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. Under the Aclt, every employee who has completed five Years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The ievel of benefits
provided depends on the employee's length of service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has compleled five Years or
more of service gets a gratuity on deparlure at 15 days salary (last drawn) for each completed Year of service as per the provisions of
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The scheme is unfunded.

Risks associated with plan provisions

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Company is exposed to
various risks as follows:

Interest rate nisk The defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount rate based on government

bonds. ifbond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend 1o increase.

Salary inflation risk Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk This is the risk of variability of results due to unsysltematic nature of decrements that inciude
morlality, wilthdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on {he defined

benefit obligation is not siraight forward and depends upon the combination of salary

Lincrease, discount rale and vesting criteria.
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For determination of the liability in respect of compensaled gratuily, the Company has used following actuarial assumptions:

Particulars Year ended | Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Discount Rate {per annum) 7.10% 7.35%
Salary Escalation (per annum) 4.00% 3.50%
Aftrition Rate (per annum} 3.00% 3.00%

Mortality Rate

As per Indian Assured Lives

Mortality

{2012-14)

Changes in the present value of obligations

(Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Yearended | Year ended
March 31, March 31,
a3 2024 2023
Liability at the beginning of the Year 20.70 19.44
Intesest cost 1.52 1.38
Current service cos! 2.40 244
Benefits paid ] i
Past service cost 2 #
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (2.56) (2.58)
Liability at the end of the Year 22.06 20.70

Table of recognition of actuarial gain / loss

{Amount in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended 1
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on cbligation for the Year (2.56) 2.56
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on assets for the Year - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss {2.56) 2.56

Breakup of actuarial {gain) /loss:

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended | Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
|Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demagraphic assumption - -
Actuarial l0ss arising from change in financial assumption 1.65 {0.63)
Actuariai loss/(gain} arising from experience (4.21) {1.93)
Total (2.56) {2.56)

Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet:

(Amount in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Liability at the end of the Year 22.06 20.70
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the Year - -
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 22.06 20.70

Expenses recognized in the Income Statement:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Yearended | Year ended |
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Current service cost 240 2.44
Interest cost 1.52 1.38
Expected return on plan assets “ -
Past Service Cost - -
Actuarial {Gain)/Loss {2.58) {2.56)
|Expense/ (income) recognized in
LStalement of Profit and Loss 3.93 3.82
- Other comprehensive income ~ (2.56) (2.48)
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Balance sheet reconciliation

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Opening net fiability 20.70 19.44
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss & OCI 1.36 1.26
Amount recognized in Baiance Sheet 22.06 20.70
Non current pertion of defined benefit obligation 20.90 19.46
Current portion of defined benefit obligation 1.16 1.24
Sensitivity analysis of benefit obligation {Gratuity)
(Amount in Lakhs
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
a)impact of change in discount rate
Present vaiue of obligation at the end of the Year
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 19.57 18.32
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 24.98 23.49
b)impact of change in salary growth
Present value of obligation at the end of the Year
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 24.31 23.00
b) impact due to decrease of 1% 19.82 18.13
¢)impact of change in withdrawal rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the Year
a) withdrawal rate Increase 22.88 21.64
b) withdrawal rate decrease 21.156 19.64
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Amount in Lakhs
P’articulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Weighled average duration of the defined benefit obligation 15.76 16.05
Projected benefit obligation 22.06 20.70
Accumulated benefit obligation 22.06 20.70
Pay-out analysis
(Amount in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
1st Year 1.16 1.24
2nd Year 0.65 0.69
3rd Year 0.59 0.68
4th Year 0.55 0.60
5th Year 1.35 0.55
Next 5 Year pay-out (6-10 Year) 3.18 3.74

Compensated absences (non-funded)

As per the policy of the Company, ebligations on account of benefit of accumulated ieave of an employee is settled every Year and
there is no accumulation of leave. Such liability is recognised on accrual basis calculated arithmelically based on Year end unpaid
leave compensalion which is going to be paid in subseqguent Year.

Note on Cash Flow Statement

The aggregate amount of outflow on account of direct taxes paid is Rs. 141.85 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 159.61 Lakhs).

Changes in financing liabilities arising from cash and non-cash changes:

Amount in Lakhs

Qpening balance Cash flows Non-cash Clesing
Particulars changes
01-Apr-23 2023-2024 31-Mar-24
Borsowings (inciuding interest dues) 1,886.88 {529.38) - 1.457.50
01-Apr-22 2022-2023 31-Mar-23
Borrowings {including interest dues) 1,013.83 973.05 - 1,986.88

Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 - Cperating Segments
There are no reportable segments under Ind AS-108 'Operating Segments' as the Company is operating only in the "Manufacturing of
Fabrics", therefore, disciosures of segment wise information is not applicable. Furlher, no single customer represents 10% or more of

the Company's total revenue during the Year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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(a)

(]

41

{Amount in Lakhs

Year ended | Year ended
Partigulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the Year 6.19 -

b. Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the Year 6.19 -

¢. Carried forword unspent amount from the previous Year - -
d. Arount spent during the Year

l - (i} Construction/ acquisition of any assets - -

- {ii) On purpose other than (i) above 6.19 -

Leases (Ind AS 116)
As lessee

Company has taken Lease hold land on operating lease. Details of lease are as given below:
Foliowing is the information pertaining to leases for the Year ended March 2024 and March 2023:

{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
‘ March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
a. Depreciation charge for Right to Use Asset 26.30 2.21
b. Interest expense on Lease Liability - -
c. Expense relating to short term leases accounted in profit & loss - -
d. Total Cash Quiflow for leases for the period - -
e, Additions to Right to use Assets - -
f. Carrying Amount of Right to use Assets as on March 31, 2024 - 26.30

As Lessor:

The Company has given certain part of its property on operating lease. These lease arrangements are for a period of 2 Years and
cancellable. Renlal income from leasing of property of Rs.NiL (Previous Year: Rs. 0.45 Lakhs) is recognised in the Slatement of
Profit and Loss. The initial direct cost (if any) is charged off {0 expenses in the Year in which it is incurred.

The Company has not given any property under non-canceliable operating lease.

Ratios:
Financial ratios Numerator Denominator T As at As at % Change
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
@ Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.00 1.41 42.37%
{b) Debt Equity Ratio Total debt Total sharehalders equity 0.35 0.54 -34.77%
{c) Debt Service coverage |Eamings available for |Total Interest and principal repay 2.42 2.95 -18.05%
ratio debt services
@) Return on Equity (%) PAT Total equity 0.11 0.12 -7.48%
(e) Inventory Turnover ratio |Cost of Material Closing inventories 175 8.79 -11.86%
Consumed
{f) Trade receivable Revenue from Closing trade receivables 9.91 7.37 34.40%
Turnover ratio operations
@) Trade payable Turnover |Adjusted expenses Closing trade payables 37 .54 11.65 222.34%
{h) Net capital turnover ratio| Revenue from Working capital 8.90 14.23 -37.47%
operations
(i) Net profit (%) Net profit Revenue 0.05 0.04 23.48%
{j) EBITDA EBITDA Revenue 0.09 0.08 13.21%
{k) Retusn on capital EBIT Capital employed 0.13 0.14 -7.86%

Reason for change more than 25%
Increase in Current ratio is on account of decrease is current liabilities mainly Trade payables on account
of better vendor management and payments made during the Year.

0

(iiy

(iii)

(iv)
W

Current Ratio ~

Debt Equity and Debt
Service Coverage Ratio

Trade Receivable Ratio -

Trade Payble Ratio -

Net capital turnover ratio -

Decrease in Ratio is on account of reduction in debt due to repayments during the Year and incresae in
equity on account of Profit for the Year.

Increase in Ratic is on account of increase in balance receivatle from debters during the Year. During
the previous Year it was lower as the provision for expected credit loss was made first time.

Increase in Ratio is on account of decreae of balance of working capitl loans.

Increase in Ratio is on account of decreae of balance of working capill loans.
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43 Financial instruments - Accounting classifications & fair value measurement

(a} Financial instruments by category

{Amount in Lakhs)

Sr. Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
No. Amortised FVTOCI FVYTPL Amortised FVTOCI FVTPL
Cost Cost
A |Financial assets
(i) |Non-current investments B - 230.72 - - 230.72
(i) |Other non-current financial 21.97 - - 21.85 - -
{iiiy |Trade receivables (net) 960.83 = - 1,532.63 - -
(iv) [Cash and cash equivalents 2.87 - - 1.30 - »
(v} Other bank balances - -
(v) [Loans and advances 33.00 - - 12.57 = -
Total financial assets 1,018.67 - 230.72 1,568.35 - 230.72
B |Financial Habilitles
{iy |Non-current borrowings 686.79 - - B69.70 - =
(i) |Current borrowings 770.71 - - 1,117.18 - -
(i) |Trade payables 193.13 - - 800.30 - -
_|Total financial liabilities 1,650.63 - - 2,787.18 - -

(b}

{c)

{d)

{e)

FVYTOCI - Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
FVTPL - Fair Value Throaugh Profit or Loss

Fair valuation technigques

The Company maintains palicies and procedures 10 value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most
relevant data available. The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be
received o seh an asset or paid 10 transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants al the
measurement date.

The management assessed that fair value of Trade receivables {net), Cash and cash equivatents, Loans and advances,
Current borrowings, Trade payables and Other current financial liabilities approximale their carrying amounts largely due

lo the shorl-term maturilies of these instruments. Furlher, the management has assessed that fair value will be
approximate to their carrying amounts as they are priced to market interest rates on or near the end of reporling period.

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair vaiue in the financial statement and are grouped into three
levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the
measurement, as follows:

Level 1 : Guoled {unadjusted) prices in active markets for idenlical assels or liabilities.

Level 2 : Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair vaiue are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.

Financial assets/ liabilities measured at fair value

The fellowing table represents the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Level 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Carrying Falr Carrying Fair value
value value value
Financial assets
Non-current investments Level 3 229.72 229.72 22972 229,72
Total financijal assets 229.72 229.72 229.72 228.72

Vaiuation techniques used to determing fair value

The level 3 hierarchy includes financial assets measured using inpuls thal are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation medel basad on assumptions
that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they
based on available market data.
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{(fi The following table summarizes the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3
fair value measurements. See (e) above for the valuation techniques adopted.

(Amount in Lakhs)

Sr. Particulars Fair value as at Significant Probability - Sensitivity Impact®
No, March 31, March 31, unobservable | Weighted
2024 2023 inputs range Reduction in Increase in
discount rate discount rate
FV Increase® FV Decrease®
1 Unlisted equity instruments 230.72 230.72 | Discount 1.00%| As at 31.03,2024 | As at 31.03.2024
Rate Rs. 249.47; Rs. 210.88
As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2023
Rs. 249.47 Rs.210.88

*Sensitivity has been considered for mentioned inputs, keeping the other variables constant. There were no significant
inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

* This represents increase/ decrease in fair vatues considering changes in inputs.

{9) The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the Year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:
{Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars lavestment in
equity
instrument
|As at 1st April 2022 230.72
Acquisition during the Year -
Disposal during the Year -
Gains/(loss) recognised in other -
comprehensive income/ Staternent of profit
and loss
As at March 31, 2023 210.72
Acquisition during the Year -
Disposal during the Year -
Gains/(loss) recognised in other -
comprehensive income/ Statement of profit
and loss
As at March 31, 2024 230.72
(h} Fair valus of instruments measured at amortised cost:
(Amount in Lakhs
Particulars Level 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
3 Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
value value
Financial assets
Investment Level 3 230.72 230.72 230.72 230.72
rgg_a__ns Level 3 21.97 21.97 21.85 21.85
Trade receivable Level 3 960.83 960.83 1,532.63 1,532.63
Cash and cagh equivalent Level 3 2.87 2.87 1.30 1.30
Loans Level 3 33.00 33.00 12.57 12.57
Total financial assets 1,249.39 1,249.39 1,799.07 1,799.07
Financlal liabilities
Borrowings Level 3 1.457.50 1,457.50 1,986.88 1,986.88
Trade pavable Levei 3 193.13 193.13 800.30 800.30
Other financial tabilities Level 3 62.61 62.81 13.43 13.43
Total financiai liabilities 1,713.24 1,713.24 2,800.61 2,800.61

Noles:

{iy The above disclosures are given only for non-current financial assets and non-current financial liabililies. Short term
financial assets and current financial liabilities (investment, cash and cash equivalents, olher receivatles, trade payables
and other current financial liabilities) represents the best estimate of fair value.

(i} Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are
inherent fimitalions in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value
eslimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid
in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent {o the reporting dates
may_be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.
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{a)

(b)

{c)

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced
by the Company, to set appropriale risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management pelicies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. The Company's Board of Director oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the
risks faced by the Company, The Board of Directors is assisted in ils oversight role by internal audit team. Internal audit
team undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Board of Directors.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
+ Credit risk;

» Liquidity risk;

* Market risk

Credit risk :

Credit risk arises from the possibility that cusiomers or counterparty to financial instruments may not be able to meet
their obligations. To manage this, the Company pericdically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into
account the financial condition, currenl economic trends, analysis of historical bad debls and ageing of accounts
receivable. Credit risks arises from cash and c¢ash equivalenis, deposits with banks, financial institulions and others, as
well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables.

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of institutions, market reputation and service standards to
select banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. the balances and fixed deposits are generally mainlained
with the banks with whom the Company has regular transactions. Further, the Company does not maintain significant
cash in hand other than those required for its day to day operations. Considering the same, the Company is not exposed
to expected credit loss of cash and cash equivalent and bank balances.

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before entering into contract. Sale limits are established for each customer, reviewed regularly and any
sales exceeding those limits require approval from the appropriate authority. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Company.

Liquidity risk :

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wili encounter difficulty in meeling the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or anether financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liguidity is
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to Company’s reputation.

tManagement maonitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liguidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis
of expected cash flows to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Such forecasting takes into
consideration the Company’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance and compliance with internal statement of
financial position ratio targets.

(i) Malurities of financial liabilities:

The following are the remaining conltractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date:
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Less than 1 1to 5 Year Above 5 Tatal
Year Years

As at March 31, 2024

Borrowings 770.71 6686.79 - 1,457.50

Trade payables 193.13 - - 193.13

Other current financial liabilities - - - -

As at March 31, 2023

Borrowings 1,117.18 869.70 - 1,986.88

Trade payables 800.30 L 2 - 800.30

Other current financial liabilities - - - -

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is t0 manage and controf market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
The pre dominant currency of the Company's revenue and operating cash flows is Indian Rupees (INR). Company has
earnings in foreign currency. There is no foreign currency risk as there is no outstanding foreign currency exposure at
the Year end.

Interest Rate Risk
The Company has taken term loans from bank and others. With respect to loans from banks and others aggregating to

March 31, 2024 (as at March 31, 2023 Rs. 1,052, interest rate is fixed. Therefore, there are no interest rate

er the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in market interest
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Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure tivat it will be able to continue as a going concern so, that they can continue
to provide relurns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital. The Company manages its capital structure and make adjustments to, in light of changes in
economic conditions, and the risk characteristics of underlying assels. In order o achieve this overall objective, the
Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure {hat it meets financial covenants attached to the
borrowings that define the capital structure requirements.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratic. The ralio is
calculated as net debt divided by equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowing (including current and non-current
terms loans as shown in the balance sheet).

The Company menilars capital using 'Total Debt’ to 'Equity’. The Company's Total Debt to Equity are as follows:

{Amount in Lakh_sgT

ﬁ’_aniculars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Total debt* 1,457.50 1,986.88
Total capital (total equily shareholder's fund) 4,155.81 3.695.44
MNet debt to equity ratio 0.35 0.54

* Total debt = Non-current borrowings + current borrowings + current maturities of non-current borrowings

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016} and rules made thereunder.

The Company fias not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

The Company has not come across any transaction acurred with struck-off companies under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or
any government authority,

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of the
Companies beyond the statutory period.

Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium :

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), induding foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the uftimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party) with
the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on

behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (such as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.

Previous Year's figures have been rearranged / regrouped wherever necessary

As per our Audit Report of even date

For P. Subramaniam & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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